

## REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

# **Information Technology Support Services**

March 27, 2023

EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 2828 EASY STREET, SUITE 1 PLACERVILLE, CALIFORNIA 95667 (530) 642-5260 www.edctc.org

## **COMMISSIONERS**

John Clerici, Chair	Placerville City Council
Wendy Thomas, Vice Chair	El Dorado County Supervisor, District 3
John Hidahl	El Dorado County Supervisor, District 1
Jackie Neau	Placerville City Council
Lori Parlin	El Dorado County Supervisor, District 4
Michael Saragosa	Placerville City Council
George Turnboo	El Dorado County Supervisor, District 2
Alex Fong (ex-officio)	as designated by the Director of Caltrans District 3
Cody Bass (ex-officio)	City of South Lake Tahoe

## **EDCTC STAFF**

Woodrow Deloria	Executive Director
Dana Keffer	Executive Assistant
Karen Thompson	Administrative Services Officer
Jerry Barton	Senior Transportation Planner
Dan Bolster	Senior Transportation Planner

## **REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS**

## **Information Technology Support Services**

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

I.	INTRODUCTION
II.	BACKGROUND
III.	PROJECT SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION
IV.	SCOPE OF WORK/SERVICES
V.	CONTACT PERSON
VI.	PROJECT TIMETABLE
VII.	GENERAL CONDITIONS
VIII.	PROPOSAL CONTENT AND ORGANIZATION
IX.	PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION
Χ.	PROTEST PROCEDURES
XI.	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

#### ATTACHMENTS:

1: Sample Professional Services Agreement

## I. INTRODUCTION

The El Dorado County Transportation Commission ("EDCTC" or the "Commission") is the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for El Dorado County. EDCTC represents the regional transportation planning interests and is responsible for coordinating regional transportation for the western slope of El Dorado County and the City of Placerville. This planning and programming authority does not include that portion of the County within the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) boundaries. TRPA is the RTPA for the Tahoe area.

The Commission shall be composed of the following members: four Supervisors appointed by the El Dorado County Board of Supervisors, two Council Members appointed by the City Council of each incorporated city in the portion of El Dorado County outside of the Tahoe Basin, unless there is only one incorporated city, in which case that city shall appoint three Council Members. The City Council of the City of South Lake Tahoe shall appoint one Council Member to serve as an ex officio non-voting member and the District Director of the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans, District 3) shall designate one ex officio non-voting member. The City shall also appoint a Council Member to serve as an alternate.

#### **DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

The duties and responsibilities of the Commission include the following:

- 1. Establishment of rules and regulations to provide for administering transportation planning and allocating the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Funds.
- 2. Receipt and approval of claims for TDA Funds.
- 3. Conduct public meetings and hearings as required by law.
- 4. Administer the regional transportation planning process
- 5. Every five years update and adopt a Regional Transportation Plan.
- 6. Every two years adopt a Regional Transportation Improvement Program.
- 7. Work with the Sacramento Area Council of Governments, as the federally-designated transportation planning agency for El Dorado County to determine air quality conformity of transportation plans, programs, and projects.
- 8. Oversee the delivery of State Transportation Improvement Program projects, pursuant to the requirements of Senate Bill 45 (Statutes of 1997) and the April 1998 Memorandum of Understanding with Caltrans.
- 9. Coordinate, consult, and collaborate with the Shingle Springs Rancheria.
- Conduct outreach efforts to the traditionally under-represented and under-served populations such as the elderly, disabled, low-income, and minority (i.e. Black, Hispanic, Asian American, American Indian/Alaskan Native, and Pacific Islander) community groups.
- 11. Administer the El Dorado County Airport Land Use Commission and related aviation system planning activities.
- 12. Administer the El Dorado County Freeway Service Patrol.

## II. BACKGROUND

EDCTC is seeking proposals from firms or individuals with qualifications and experience for providing professional information technology support services to EDCTC. This service entails providing network troubleshooting and peripherals maintenance and management for the

Commission. Currently the EDCTC staff is responsible for the design and maintenance of the EDCTC website, and software and minor hardware procurement.

## III. PROJECT SUMMARY AND DESCRIPTION

The contract for Information Technology Support Services will be an agreement between the EDCTC and the firm or individual. The technician(s) will provide an invoice to EDCTC for services rendered and EDCTC will pay the firm for these services. Funding for the technician(s) services will be provided by EDCTC utilizing federal, state, and/or local funding sources. The EDCTC Board of Directors or Executive Director will award the contract as provided in EDCTC policy. The Executive Assistant will serve as the day-to-day interface with the technician(s).

There are currently five employees, each with a desktop computer at their office location as well as all-in-one computers at their home offices. There is also a laptop on site that will require regular service and support. The EDCTC has mail hosted in MS Exchange 365. The current IT vendor maintains a local and cloud backup of the mail server as well as provides spam filtering. DNS Filter is used for traffic filtering and Huntress Labs is used for endpoint detection and response.

Internet is provided by AT&T with AireSpring as the Carrier with a 50 mbps download and 50 mbps upload. Internal LAN run by WatchGuard firewall is simple with no VLAN or network segmentation. All workstations are running windows 10/11. The current domain controller is running server 2008 R2 but is being phased out as EDCTC moves into a cloud-only environment.

EDCTC is currently in mid-transition away from local active directory, email, and file services. File systems have been migrated to SharePoint and email has been migrated to Microsoft 365. All workstations and local domain user accounts still need to be migrated to Azure AD and integrated with Azure 2FA. This process may be in a state of partial completion while bids are being reviewed/accepted.

#### **Current Environment**

Microsoft 365 Exchange email hosting

Microsoft 365 Business Premium

Spam filtering services

Kofax, Nuance PDF software

Adobe Illustrator 10

Stamps.com

Quickbooks VDI Cloud Hosted Server provided by IT vendor

ArcGIS

File system hosted in MS Sharepoint

Azure AD

Webroot Managed Antivirus

**DNS** Filter endpoints

**Huntress Labs EDR** 

Watchguard VPN for remote access

Local and cloud based Veeam backup jobs for all local PCs and cloud hosted data

5 Nextiva VOIP phones

Azure AD Two Factor Authentication

Watchquard T15 firewall

APC UPS

5 Dell PCs

March 24, 2023 Page 2 of 14

- 1 Dell Laptop
- 1 Dell Power Edge T330 server hosting server 2008 R2 DC VM
- 1 Dell PC hosting local Veeam server

## IV. SCOPE OF WORK/SERVICES

The scope of work is described below. The selected technician(s) will be expected to perform all services described in the scope of work via remote access, telephone, or onsite as needed with the assumption that confidentiality will be extended in all services performed. The technician(s) will receive general direction from the EDCTC Executive Assistant. Tasks will include the following:

- Provide computer technical support for EDCTC staff
- Provide cloud hosting VDI services
- Troubleshoot, maintain, and manage the network and network hardware
- Troubleshoot and maintain workstations, printers, servers, and peripherals
- Monitor and manage license usage
- Maintain and support SSL VPN access to local and cloud hosted infrastructure
- Manage patching/upgrades for software and Windows operating systems
- Assist with the acquisition of hardware and software as needed
- Assist or manage the installation of such hardware and software as needed
- Provide service and repair as necessary with timely response
- Continue migrating away from on premise domain into Azure AD and Sharepoint
- Antivirus and security tool monitoring and threat remediation
- Provide spam filtering service
- Periodic external penetration testing and internal security analysis
- Monthly onsite visits and hardware checkups
- Semiannual hardware cleaning / dusting / physical checks
- Maintain network and hardware documentation
- Configure all users and workstations in Azure AD and deprecate old local AD server
- Maintain and support VOIP phone service and necessary network infrastructure
- Support accessing work resources from mobile devices (email / files / etc.)
- Hardware decommissioning, wipe and recycling as needed
- Provide a cloud based virtual desktop to host Quickbooks
- Back up the cloud server daily with local and offsite backup jobs

## V. CONTACT PERSON

Dana Keffer, Executive Assistant El Dorado County Transportation Commission 2828 Easy Street, Suite 1, Placerville, CA 95667 530.642.5260 dkeffer@edctc.org

## VI. PROJECT TIMETABLE

March 27, 2023	Issue Request For Proposals
May 3, 2023	Closing Date for Receipt of Proposals
May 5, 2023	Finalists contacted to schedule interviews, if required
May 12, 2023	Conduct interviews, if required
June 1, 2023	Contract award at Commission meeting
July 1, 2023	Contract Effective Date

March 24, 2023 Page 3 of 14

Proposals must be <u>received</u> no later than **4:00 pm on May 3, 2023** at the EDCTC office.

## EL DORADO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 2828 EASY STREET, SUITE 1 PLACERVILLE, CA 95667

Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope that is clearly marked "Information Technology Support Services." If mail delivery is used, the proposer should mail the proposal early enough to provide for arrival by this deadline. The proposer uses mail or courier service at his/her own risk. EDCTC will not be liable or responsible for any late delivery of proposals. Postmarks will not be accepted. Until award of the contract, the proposals shall be held in confidence and shall not be available for public review. Upon award of a contract to the successful proposer, all proposals shall be public record. No proposal shall be returned after the date and time set for opening thereof.

By submitting a proposal, the proposer certifies that his or her name or firm's name, as well as that of proposer subcontractors, does not appear on the Comptroller General's list of ineligible contractors for federally assisted projects.

## VII. GENERAL CONDITIONS

#### A. Limitations

This Request for Proposals (RFP) does not commit EDCTC to award a contract, to pay any costs incurred in the preparation of the proposal in response to this request, or to procure or contract for services or supplies. EDCTC expressly reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or to waive any irregularity or information in any proposal or in the RFP procedure and to be the sole judge of the responsibility of any proposer and of the suitability of the materials and/or services to be rendered. EDCTC reserves the right to withdraw this RFP at any time without prior notice. Further, EDCTC reserves the right to modify the RFP schedule described above.

#### B. Award

EDCTC plans to ask RFP finalists, if required, to present oral presentations regarding their firms and any special expertise in the necessary areas. All finalists may be required to participate in negotiations and submit such price, technical, or other revisions of their proposals as may result from negotiations. EDCTC also reserves the right to award the contract without discussion or interviews, based upon the initial proposals. Accordingly, each initial proposal should be submitted on the most favorable terms from a price and a technical viewpoint. However, selection will be based upon demonstrated competence and professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required. Following the initial qualifications-based selection, the price proposal provided will be the basis for negotiations to ensure EDCTC receives a fair and reasonable price.

#### C. RFP Addendum

Any changes to the RFP requirements will be made by written addenda by EDCTC and shall be considered part of the RFP. Upon issuance, such addenda shall be incorporated in the RFP documents, and shall prevail over inconsistent provisions of earlier issued documentation.

March 24, 2023 Page 4 of 14

#### D. Verbal Agreement or Conversation

No prior, current, or post award verbal conversations or agreement(s) with any officer, agent, or employee of EDCTC shall affect or modify any terms or obligations of the RFP, or any contract resulting from this RFP.

#### E. Pre-contractual Expense

Pre-contractual expenses are defined as expenses incurred by proposers and selected contractor in:

- 1. Preparing proposals in response to this RFP,
- 2. Submitting proposals to EDCTC,
- 3. Negotiations with EDCTC on any matter related to proposals; and
- 4. Other expenses incurred by a contractor or proposer prior to the date of award of any agreement.

In any event, EDCTC shall not be liable for any pre-contractual expenses incurred by any proposer or selected contractor. Proposers shall not include any such expenses as part of the price proposed in response to this RFP. EDCTC shall be held harmless and free from any and all liability, claims, or expenses whatsoever incurred by, or on behalf of, any person or organization responding to this RFP.

#### F. Signature

The proposal shall provide the following information: name, title, address, and telephone number of the individual with authority to bind the company and also who may be contacted during the period of proposal evaluation. The proposal shall be signed by an official authorized to bind the consultant(s) and shall contain a statement to the effect that the proposal is a firm offer for at least a ninety (90) day period. Execution of the contract is expected after Commission meeting on June 1, 2023.

#### G. Term

The term of the contract will be five (5) years from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2028.

#### H. Fiscal Out Clause

The Agreement may be terminated at the end of any fiscal year, June 30, without further liability other than payment incurred during such fiscal year, should funds not be appropriated by EDCTC to continue services for which the agreement was intended.

#### I. Insurance

The successful firm shall provide evidence of the following insurance requirements:

- 1. Workers Compensation; Employer's Liability: Statutory requirements for Workers' Compensation; \$1,000,000 Employers' Liability.
- 2. Comprehensive Automobile: Bodily Injury/Property Damage \$1,000,000 each accident.
- 3. General Liability: \$1,000,000 per occurrence naming the El Dorado County Transportation Commission as an additional insured.
- 4. Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability (errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession as defined by EDCTC): \$1,000,000 per claim.

March 24, 2023 Page 5 of 14

#### J. Contract Arrangements

The proposer is expected to execute a contract similar to EDCTC's Professional Services Agreement, which meets the requirements of the current Federal transportation bill.

- Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy: It is the policy of the U.S. Department of Transportation that minority- and women-owned business enterprises (hereby referred to as DBE's) as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds. DBE certified consultants are encouraged to submit proposals. EDCTC will not exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR, Part 26 on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin.
- 2. <u>DBE Obligation</u>: The recipient or its contractor agrees to ensure that DBE's have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this agreement. In this regard, all recipients or contractors shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure that DBE's have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Recipients and their contractors shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of DOT-assisted contracts.
- 3. <u>Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964</u>: The contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements imposed by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d) and the regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation issued thereunder in 49 CFR Part 21.
- 4. Equal Employment Opportunity: In connection with the performance of the contract, the contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, age, creed, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

Each proposal, to be considered responsive, must include the following:

- A. A copy of the consultant(s) affirmative action policy (applicable for firms with 50 or more employees); and
- B. A discussion of the consultant(s) program for use of DBE's in the performance of this work, including the following:
  - The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate;
  - The description of the work each named firm will perform; and
  - The dollar amount of participation by each DBE firm.
- 5. <u>Conflict of Interest</u>: Firms submitting proposals in response to this RFP must disclose to EDCTC any actual, apparent, or potential conflicts of interest that may exist relative to the services to be provided under Agreement for consulting services to be awarded pursuant to this RFP. If this firm has no conflict of interest, a statement to that effect shall be included in the proposal.

March 24, 2023 Page 6 of 14

### VIII. PROPOSAL CONTENT AND ORGANIZATION

Proposals should be limited to specific discussion of the elements outlined in this RFP. The intent of this RFP is to encourage responses which meet the stated requirements, and which propose the best methods to accomplish the work.

The organization of the proposal should follow the general outline below. Each proposal should consist of a technical proposal (items 1-7 below) and a cost proposal (item 8).

#### 1. Transmittal Letter

The transmittal letter should include the name, title, address, phone number, and original signature of an individual with authority to negotiate on behalf of and to contractually bind the consultant(s) firm, and who may be contacted during the period of proposal evaluation. Only one transmittal letter needs to accompany all copies of the technical and cost proposal.

#### 2. Table of Contents

A listing of the major sections in the proposal and the associated page numbers.

#### Introduction

In this section, the proposer should demonstrate an adequate understanding of the role and relationships of EDCTC and an awareness of issues specific to Information Technology Support Services.

#### 4. Technical Approach

Technical approach should include:

- a) A brief description of the consultant(s) firm, including the year the firm was established, type of organization of firm (partnership, corporation, etc.), and any variation in size over the last five years, along with a statement of the firm's qualifications for performing the subject consulting services;
- b) A brief description of the firm's experience with similar projects:
- A thorough explanation of the consultant's proposed course of action. References should be made to the RFP requirements and the consultant's plans for meeting those requirements; and

#### 5. Project Management

The proposer must prepare an explanation of the project management system and practices to be used to assure that the proposed services are completed timely and that the quality of the products will meet EDCTC's requirements.

#### 6. Consultant Staff

The proposal must describe the qualifications and experience of each professional who will participate in the project, including a resume for each member of the project team. A project manager must be designated, and an organizational chart showing the manager and all project staff proposed who will provide services must be included.

#### 7. Consultant Qualifications and References

The proposal must include a list of references for similar clients. References should include client contact names, addresses, phone numbers, descriptions of the type of work performed, approximate dates on which the work was completed, and professional staff who performed the work. If a subcontractor is proposed, two to three similar qualifications and references should be provided for the subcontractor. The proposal must also include discussion of the consultant's affirmative action policy, use of DBEs in the performance of this work, and disclosure of any actual, apparent, or potential conflicts of interest.

March 24, 2023 Page 7 of 14

#### 8. Cost Proposal

The proposer shall describe the monthly amount for service and a billing rate for any other related costs that are to be billed directly.

The cost proposal shall be submitted in a separately sealed envelope. This separately sealed envelope will not be opened until the consultants' proposals have been ranked based on their qualifications.

#### 9. Number of Copies

The proposer must provide three (3) bound copies, one (1) unbound original (suitable for reproduction) of all submittals in response to this Request For Proposals to EDCTC.

All proposals shall be <u>received</u> no later than **4:00 pm on May 3, 2023** at the EI Dorado County Transportation Commission, 2828 Easy Street, Suite 1, Placerville, California 95667. All proposals shall be submitted in a sealed envelope that is clearly marked "INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICES." **Late proposals will not be accepted.** 

All proposals, whether selected or rejected, shall become the property of the El Dorado County Transportation Commission.

All proposals received prior to the date and time specified above for receipt may be withdrawn or modified by written request of the proposer. To be considered, the modification must be received in writing, and in the same number of copies as the original proposal, prior to the date and time specified for receipt of proposals.

Until award of the contract, the proposals shall be held in confidence and shall not be available for public review. Upon award of a contract to the successful proposer, all proposals shall be public records. No proposal shall be returned after the date and time set for opening thereof.

## IX. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION

A proposal review panel made up of members of EDCTC and the selected Evaluation Committee will evaluate the proposals. Proposers may be telephoned and asked for further information, if necessary, and may be expected to appear for oral interviews on the date identified in the project timetable. Previous clients will also be called. The panel will make recommendations to the EDCTC Executive Director on the basis of the proposal, oral interview, and reference check. EDCTC reserves the right to select a consultant based solely on written proposals and not convene oral interviews.

Upon receipt of the proposals, a technical evaluation will be performed. Each of the major sections of the proposal will be reviewed and evaluated with criteria designed to help judge the quality of the proposal. Evaluation criteria will include such considerations as:

- Understanding the purpose and requirements of the Information Technology Support Services:
- Technical competence and comparable experience of consultant's team members;
- Experience of the firm on similar work, and references;
- Approach to scope of work and understanding of the work as described, demonstrated in the written proposal;
- Cost of providing services;
- Conformance with the proposal guidelines and format outlined in this RFP;
- Complete and clear response to requested matters in Proposal;
- Communication skills;
- References from other clients.

March 24, 2023 Page 8 of 14

Following the qualification-based ranking, negotiations shall be conducted with the most qualified proposer. Failing an agreement on price, EDCTC will negotiate with the next most qualified proposer until a contract can be awarded to the most qualified offeror whose price is fair and reasonable.

## X. PROTEST PROCEDURES

#### A. Purpose and Applicability

The procedures described in this section have been established to ensure uniform, timely, and equitable consideration of all complaints received by the EDCTC concerning its procurement activities.

The following protest procedures shall be employed for procurements conducted by the EDCTC. Such protests shall be applicable only to procurements wherein the EDCTC requests bids, proposals or offers for goods or services financed in whole or in part by public funds.

Procurements involving FTA funds are subject to additional protest procedures established by that agency. Procedures applicable to FTA-funded procurements are so identified.

#### B. **Definitions**

The following definitions apply to terms used in this section:

**DAYS**: Unless otherwise specified, refers to the EDCTC working days.

FILE OR SUBMIT: Refers to the date of receipt by the EDCTC.

**INTERESTED PARTY**: All bidders or proposers involved in an EDCTC procurement. This may also include a subcontractor or supplier who shows substantial economic

interest in a provision of the RFP, or in the interpretation of such provision. **BID**: Refers to and includes: i) the terms "offer" and "proposal" as employed in this document: ii) sealed bids: iii) competitive negotiation, and: iv) non-competitive

document; ii) sealed bids; iii) competitive negotiation, and; iv) non-competitive negotiation.

#### C. Basis for Protest

If in the course of a procurement action an interested party has reason to believe that: a) free and open competition does not exist; or, b) the EDCTC solicitation documents contain restrictive specifications, such party may file a protest in accordance with the procedures described herein.

In addition to the above, protests may be filed based upon the following factual or alleged circumstances:

- (a) Violation of federal, state, or local law or regulation
- (b) Sole source procurements
- (c) Failure to adhere to evaluation criteria set forth in solicitation documents, or use of additional criteria not so published
- (d) Changes to evaluation criteria made during the evaluation process
- (e) Local or DBE preferences
- (f) Solicitation advertising violating applicable laws or regulations
- (g) Provision of inadequate time to prepare a proposal.

Protests of the EDCTC procurements filed by interested parties shall be considered in two general categories: 1) those filed prior to contract award, and 2) protests occurring after contract award has been made.

March 24, 2023 Page 9 of 14

#### D. Pre-Award Protests

The following procedures shall be followed for all protests filed prior to award of contract:

- Protests must be filed no later than five (5) days prior to the date established in the solicitation for receipt of bids or proposals. Protest information requests and follow-up arguments that are submitted after the protest submission deadline will not be considered to be part of the protest by the EDCTC.
- 2. Protests must be submitted in writing to the attention of the EDCTC Executive Director. The written protests shall include:
  - (a) The name, address, and telephone number of the protester
  - (b) The EDCTC solicitation number and project description
  - (c) A statement of the grounds for the protest, accompanied by all supporting documentation. All grounds must be fully supported with documentation
  - (d) The resolution sought from the EDCTC by the protester.
- 3. The EDCTC Executive Director shall receive the protest and issue written notification to the protester within (5) five days that the matter is undergoing review. Notice of the protest shall be given in writing to all known recipients of solicitation documents.
- 4. Procurement activity shall be suspended pending resolution of a protest unless one or more of the following conditions exists:
  - (a) The goods or services being procured are urgently required
  - (b) Delivery or performance will be unduly delayed by failure to make an award promptly
  - (c) Failure to make prompt award will result in termination of a critical EDCTC function or activity or otherwise cause undue harm to the EDCTC, or
  - (d) The EDCTC Executive Director prepares a written finding that such protest is clearly frivolous in nature, and therefore does not warrant a disruption of the procurement process

The EDCTC Executive Director shall be responsible for making a written determination that circumstances require the EDCTC to proceed with procurement during a pending protest. Unless such determination is made, the procurement shall be suspended pending resolution of the protest. All parties known to have received solicitation documents shall be notified in writing of such suspension by the EDCTC Executive Director.

5. All protests received within the specified period shall be examined by the EDCTC Executive Director.

No additional material shall be accepted for consideration during the protest review unless specifically requested in writing by the EDCTC.

6. The EDCTC Executive Director may attempt to resolve the protest with the affected party. If a) the EDCTC Executive Director elects not to attempt such resolution, or b) resolution is attempted but not achieved, the protesting parties may appeal to the El Dorado County Transportation Commission (hereinafter "Commission") after thirty (30) calendar days and within thirty-five (35) calendar days after receipt of the protest submittal. Failure to appeal to the Commission shall be a waiver of any other rights under the EDCTC Protest Procedures.

March 24, 2023 Page 10 of 14

For these purposes, "resolution" shall mean the written withdrawal of a protest by the originating party.

- 7. The Commission shall formally consider the protests at a public meeting within forty-five (45) calendar days after the date on which the matter was appealed to the Commission. The Commission may elect to appoint a sub-committee to review the protest and make a recommendation to the Commission at the public meeting. Protesting parties shall be notified in writing of the date on which their matters shall be considered by the Commission. Such parties shall be afforded an opportunity to present their case at the Commission meeting.
- 8. The Commission shall then make a formal decision on such protests at a public meeting. The decision of the Commission, along with a formal record of the protest, shall become a matter of public record, and shall be considered final. The EDCTC Executive Director shall notify protesting parties in writing of any protest decision made by the Commission.
  - Except under conditions described in item 4 above, such decision by the Commission shall be made prior to award of any contract related to the subject procurement.
- 9. Should the Commission deny the protest, the EDCTC may proceed with the procurement process. In the case of FTA-funded procurements, no contract shall be awarded within five (5) days following the Commission's decision unless such award is necessary due to circumstances described in item 4 above. If the decision of the Commission is to uphold the protest, then the EDCTC shall proceed pursuant to Commission direction.

#### E. Post-Award Protests

Protests received after award of contract shall be considered only if received within five (5) days following the date on which the EDCTC Executive Director award recommendation is made. Post-award protests received after that time shall not be considered. Protest information requests and follow-up arguments that are submitted after the protest submission deadline will not be considered to be part of the protest by the EDCTC.

Post-award protests shall be processed in the same fashion as that employed for pre-award protests. However, the award shall remain valid and procurement activities shall continue unless the EDCTC Executive Director determines in writing that suspension of such award is necessary pending protest resolution. In that event the awardee shall be so notified in writing, and the EDCTC Executive Director shall effect an agreement with the Contractor for suspension of activity.

#### F. Additional Protest Procedures for FTA-Funded Procurements

#### FTA Protest Review Procedures

The EDCTC shall inform protesting parties that circumstances under which FTA will accept, and review protests are limited to the following:

- (a) The alleged failure of the EDCTC to have written protest procedures
- (b) The alleged failure of the EDCTC to follow such procedures
- (c) The alleged violation by the EDCTC of a specific federal requirement which provides an applicable complaint procedure

March 24, 2023 Page 11 of 14

In the instance of (c) above, the applicable complaint procedure shall be submitted and processed in accordance with pertinent federal regulations e.g., 49 CFR Part 661, Section 661.15 for Buy America, or 49 CFR Part 26 for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation.

Should a protest be filed with FTA under either (a) or (c) above, the following process will be used by FTA pursuant to Circular 4220.1B, Chapter V:

- 1. Parties shall file a protest with FTA no later than five (5) days after a final decision is rendered by the Commission as provided herein. In instances where the protester alleges that the EDCTC failed to make a final determination on the protest, protesters shall file a protest with FTA no later than five (5) days after the protester knew or should have known of the EDCTC' failure to render a final determination on the protest.
- 2. The EDCTC shall not award a contract for five (5) days following its decision on a bid protest except in accordance with the provisions and limitations of item 9 and item 4 of the protest procedures. After five (5) days, the EDCTC shall confirm with FTA that FTA has not received a protest on the contract in question.
- 3. Protests shall be filed with the FTA Region IX office.
- 4. The protest filed with FTA shall:
  - (a) include the name and address of the protester
  - (b) identify the grantee, project number, and the number, if any, of the contract solicitation.
  - (c) contain a statement of the grounds for protest and any supporting documentation. This should detail the alleged failure to follow protest procedures or the alleged failure to have procedures, and should be supported by documentation to the extent possible
  - (d) include a copy of the local protest filed with the EDCTC along with a copy of the EDCTC decision, if any.
- 5. FTA shall notify the EDCTC in a timely manner of the receipt of a protest. FTA shall instruct the EDCTC to notify the contractor of the protest if award has been made or, if no award has been made, to notify all interested parties. The EDCTC shall instruct all who receive such notice that they may communicate further directly with FTA.
- 6. The EDCTC shall submit the following information to FTA not later than ten (10) days after receipt of notification by FTA of the protest:
  - (a) a copy of the EDCTC protest procedures.
  - (b) a description of the process followed concerning the protest, and
  - (c) any supporting documentation
- 7. The EDCTC shall provide the protester with a copy of the above submission.
- 8. The protester may provide any comments on the EDCTC submission no later than ten (10) days after the protester's receipt of such material.
- 9. When a protest has been filed in a timely fashion with the EDCTC before award, the EDCTC shall not make an award prior to five (5) days after the resolution of the protest, or if a protest has been filed with FTA, during the period in which the protest is pending, unless the EDCTC determines that:

March 24, 2023 Page 12 of 14

- (a) The items to be procured are urgently required.
- (b) Delivery or performance will be unduly delayed by failure to make the award promptly, or
- (c) Failure to make prompt award will otherwise cause undue harm to the EDCTC or the Federal Government

In the event that the EDCTC determines that the award is to be made during the five (5) day period following the local protest decision or the period in which the protest is pending, the EDCTC shall notify FTA prior to making such award.

- Upon receipt of the material described herein, FTA will either request further information or a conference among the parties or will render a decision on the protest.
- 11. The protest procedures contained herein shall be included in solicitation documents issued by the EDCTC for all federally assisted procurements.

## XI. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Fees shall be billed on a monthly basis. All invoices will be mailed to the EDCTC office at 2828 Easy Street, Suite 1, Placerville, CA 95667.

## XII. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

The selected consultant must enter into a Professional Services Agreement with EDCTC for provisions related to compensation, conflict of interest, indemnification, insurance, etc. The scope, budget and schedule to complete the study will be incorporated into the professional services agreement. The proposal's transmittal letter shall state the Consultant's ability to comply with the contract provisions as outlined in EDCTC's sample professional services agreement or indicate which provisions will require amendments during contract negotiations.

#### ATTACHMENTS:

1: Sample Professional Services Agreement

March 24, 2023 Page 13 of 14

## ATTACHMENT 1 SAMPLE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

March 24, 2023 Page 14 of 14